


                                     STAFF REPORT 
 
DATE:  December 16, 2014       
 
RE: 101 Duval Street (permit application #7187) 
 
FROM:   Karen DeMaria, Urban Forestry Manager,  
                     City of Key West 
 
An application was received for the removal of several trees in relation to 
the remodeling of an existing building (Minor Development Plan) and the 
requirement of the submittal of a landscape plan.  The applicant is seeking 
permission to remove (2) Strangler Fig trees, 1-Gumbo Limbo, 4-
Alexander Palms and 1-Thatch Palm.  A site inspection was done on                
and documented the following: 
 
1.   Strangler Fig in Planter #1 (Ficus aurea): Located in an area adjacent to 
Duval Street.   

 
Photo taken November 2013. 
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Diameter: 29.9” 
Location:  50%  (close to building, canopy has been cut numerous times)  
Species: 100% (on protected tree list)  
Condition:  30%  (very poor with lots of decay)   
Total Average Value =  60%   
Value x Diameter =  17.9 replacement caliper inches 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Photos taken October 13, 2014  



2.  Strangler Fig in Planter #2-Courtyard area (Ficus aurea) 

 
 

 



 

 
 

 



 
                  
                          
Diameter:  30”  
Location:  60%  (in a courtyard type area, surrounded by buildings)  
Species: 100% (on protected tree list)  
Condition:  30%  (poor, lot of decay main trunks with numerous cuts)   
Total Average Value =  63%   
Value x Diameter =  19.9 replacement caliper inches 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3.  Gumbo Limbo in Planter #3 (Bursera simaruba) 

 
 

 

Alexander Palm to remain 



 
               
Diameter:  2.9”  
Location:  60%  (growing on top of palm root ball)  
Species:  100% (on protected tree list)  
Condition:  40%  (poor-has been topped)   
Total Average Value =  66%   
Value x Diameter =   1.9 replacement caliper inches 



4.  4-Alexander Palms and 1-Thatch Palm:  All five palms are located in the 
courtyard area. 
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Planter #4 (along Front St) vegetation includes Potato shrub and Cyperus sp. 
(not regulated)   

Thatch 
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Planter #5 (along Front St) vegetated by Thespesia populnea and silver 
buttonwood shrubs (not regulated) 
 

 
 
Planter #6 (along Duval St) existing vegetation = 3 sabal palms  
 



Notes:  This property was developed in 1994 with minimal landscaping 
required that included a courtyard area.  The two existing ficus trees were to 
remain on site and be protected.  Several planter areas were created along 
Duval and Front St. 
 
The applicant proposes to enclose the courtyard area and enhance the planter 
areas with the remaining replacement inches being covered under a 
monetary fee to the City of Key West Tree Fund.      
 
According to the applicant’s representative:   

“As	 to	 the	 enclosure,	 it	 is	 a	 prerequisite	 of	 CVS	 leasing	 the	 property.		 Don	
Craig	before	leaving	agreed	that	it	was	an	“attractive	nuisance”	that	attracted	
vagrants.		Thus,	the	Courtyard	is	always	gated	and	locked.		It	has	never	been	
used	and	is	frankly	problematic	to	maintain	and	secure.		It	is	necessary	to	be	
enclosed	 to	 have	 one	 continuous	 space	 per	 the	 development	 plan	
application.		If	the	courtyard	is	not	enclosed,	the	space	is	not	suitable	for	the	
intended	use.		Therefore,	the	trees	in	the	courtyard	must	be	removed.”	

	
This is a Minor Development with only one landscape review. 
 
In November 2013, a request was made to look at the health of the Ficus tree 
along Duval Street.  At that time it was noted that the tree had a lot of decay 
and was hollow in main trunk and branch areas.  When the application was 
submitted to review the landscape plan, the urban forester requested that the 
ficus tree be reviewed to be removed due to its declining health and possible 
potential safety issue.  
 
 
	
Recommendations:  Recommend approval of the Landscape Plan for 
101 Duval Street to include the removal of (2) Strangler Fig trees,   
1-Gumbo Limbo tree, 4-Alexander Palms and 1-Thatch Palm, to be 
replaced with 39.7 caliper inches of FL#1 native dicot trees and 5-native 
palms to be planted on site and in the adjacent City ROW planters with 
the remainder of the required inches to be mitigated by paying a fee 
into the City of Key West Tree Fund ($150 per caliper inch and $250 
per palm, Sec 110-327 (7)(a)). 
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Standing on Duval looking down Front Street 



 
 

 

Standing on the corner of Duval and Front Streets looking down Duval 
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Karen DeMaria

From: bart@smithoropeza.com
Sent: Monday, December 15, 2014 6:50 PM
To: Karen DeMaria; Kevin Bond; greg@smithoropeza.com
Cc: dhernandez@boosdevelopment.com
Subject: RE: 101 Duval - CVS

Hi	Karen,	
	
You	may	correspond	with	our	office,	and	cc’	Danlys.		As	to	the	enclosure,	it	is	a	prerequisite	of	CVS	leasing	
the	property.		Don	Craig	before	leaving	agreed	that	it	was	an	“attractive	nuisance”	that	attracted	
vagrants.		Thus,	the	Courtyard	is	always	gated	and	locked.		It	has	never	been	used	and	is	frankly	
problematic	to	maintain	and	secure.		It	is	necessary	to	be	enclosed	to	have	one	continuous	space	per	the	
development	plan	application.		If	the	courtyard	is	not	enclosed,	the	space	is	not	suitable	for	the	intended	
use.		Therefore,	the	trees	in	the	courtyard	must	be	removed.					
	
As	to	the	ficus	tree	to	the	Southwest,	we	have	spoken	with	the	client	regarding	replacing	the	tree	on	the	
Southwest	corner	and	it	may	be	a	possible,	but	no	decision	has	been	made	as	to	whether	it	will	be,	and	if	
so,	what	will	replace	it.		As	to	the	saw	palmetto,	any	suggestions	as	an	alternative?	
	
I	will	keep	you	apprised	as	to	any	decisions	as	to	a	replacement	tree	on	the	Southwest	corner.		Thanks	for	
your	assistance.	
	
Bart	
	
Barton W. Smith, Esq. 
	

	
	
138	–	142	Simonton	Street 
Key	West,	Florida	33040 
Tel:	305‐296‐7227 
Fax:	305‐296‐8448 
www.SmithOropeza.com	
 
     Tax Advice Disclosure: To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the IRS under Circular 230, we inform you that any U.S. federal tax 

advice contained in this communication (including any attachments), unless otherwise specifically stated, was not intended or written to be used, and 

cannot be used, for the purpose of (1) avoiding penalties under the Internal Revenue Code or (2) promoting, marketing or recommending to another 

party any matters addressed herein. 
  

     The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information.  It is intended only for the use of the person(s) 

named above. If you are not the intended recipient,  you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination, distribution or duplication of this 

communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original 

message.  
  

      Please note: This law firm may be deemed a ʺdebt collectorʺ under the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act. Any and all information obtained during 

and from communications may be used for the purpose of collecting debt. 

	
From: Karen DeMaria [mailto:kdemaria@cityofkeywest-fl.gov]  
Sent: Monday, December 15, 2014 5:00 PM 
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To: bart@smithoropeza.com; Kevin Bond; greg@smithoropeza.com 
Cc: dhernandez@boosdevelopment.com 
Subject: RE: 101 Duval - CVS 
 
Bart and Greg:   
 
I noticed on the tree application that the property is to be represented by Danlys Hernandez.  Is that who is coming to 
the meeting Jan 13, 2015 and whom I should send all correspondence? 
 
I have been researching the old files and I spoke to Cynthia Dommench‐Coogle about the property and it has been 
confirmed that the trees in the “courtyard” are growing on natural ground.  In fact, both Ficus trees were on the original 
development plan to be preserved.  Because of this, I think it is important to address why the courtyard trees must be 
removed.  Why must CVS enclose that area?  Are there alternatives? Can you please address this and submit something 
in writing for the file.  The other Ficus tree is in poor condition and a lot of that has to do with poor maintenance and a 
lot of heavy cuts to branches on the tree.  I wouldn’t be surprised  to hear an ‘I told you so’ in the public comments.  I do 
recommend that a tree be planted back in that area once the tree is removed.  Can you address this with your clients 
and the landscape architect please.  If the desire is not to plant in this spot, then please be prepared to answer why not.
 
In the landscape plan for the planters along Front Street  (planter #2) I noticed that saw palmetto was to be planted.  I 
would recommend something else.  I do not think saw palmetto would be a good choice in a high traffic and high water 
area (future growth). 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Karen DeMaria 
 
 

From: Karen DeMaria  
Sent: Wednesday, December 10, 2014 4:06 PM 
To: 'bart@smithoropeza.com'; Kevin Bond; greg@smithoropeza.com 
Subject: RE: 101 Duval ‐ CVS 
 
Bart: 
 
The engineer can sign the plans.  
 
What I saw was the existing tree map which looked accurate.  What I need now is a “landscape plan” basically showing 
what you are going to plant in the tree planter areas along Front Street.  Also, can you plant a tree to replace the ficus 
being removed from the corner of Duval (tree #1)?  There is space there for a tree once the ficus is removed. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Karen    
 

From: bart@smithoropeza.com [mailto:bart@smithoropeza.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, December 09, 2014 4:17 PM 
To: Kevin Bond; greg@smithoropeza.com 
Cc: Karen DeMaria 
Subject: RE: 101 Duval ‐ CVS 
 

Kevin	and	Karen,	
	



 

 

Application 
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